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30 CFR Ch. VII (7–1–10 Edition) § 723.15 

[45 FR 58783, Sept. 4, 1980, as amended at 62 
FR 63276, Nov. 28, 1997; 66 FR 58646, Nov. 21, 
2001; 70 FR 70700, Nov. 22, 2005; 74 FR 34492, 
July 15, 2009] 

§ 723.15 Assessment of separate viola-
tions for each day. 

(a) The Office may assess separately 
a civil penalty for each day from the 
date of issuance of the notice of viola-
tion or cessation order to the date set 
for abatement of the violation. In de-
termining whether to make such an as-
sessment, the Office shall consider the 
factors listed in 30 CFR 723.13 and may 
consider the extent to which the person 
to whom the notice or order was issued 
gained any economic benefit as a result 
of a failure to comply. For any viola-
tion which continues for two or more 
days and which is assigned more than 
70 points under 30 CFR 723.13(b), the Of-
fice shall assess a civil penalty for a 
minimum of two separate days. 

(b) In addition to the civil penalty 
provided for in paragraph (a), whenever 
a violation contained in a notice of vio-
lation or cessation order has not been 
abated within the abatement period set 
in the notice or order or as subse-
quently extended pursuant to section 
521(a) of the Act, a civil penalty of not 
less than $1,025 shall be assessed for 
each day during which such failure to 
abate continues, except that: 

(1)(i) If suspension of the abatement 
requirements of the notice or order is 
ordered in a temporary relief pro-
ceeding under section 525(c) of the Act, 
after a determination that the person 
to whom the notice or order was issued 
will suffer irreparable loss or damage 
from the application of the require-
ments, the period permitted for abate-
ment shall not end until the date on 
which the Office of Hearing and Ap-
peals issues a final order with respect 
to the violation in question; and 

(ii) If the person to whom the notice 
or order was issued initiates review 
proceedings under section 526 of the 
Act with respect to the violation, in 
which the obligations to abate are sus-
pended by the court pursuant to sec-
tion 526(c) of the Act, the daily assess-
ment of a penalty shall not be made for 
any period before entry of a final order 
by the court. 

(2) Such penalty for the failure to 
abate a violation shall not be assessed 

for more than 30 days for such viola-
tion. If the permittee has not abated 
the violation within the 30-day period, 
the Office shall take appropriate action 
pursuant to sections 518(e), 518(f), 
521(a)(4) or 521(c) of the Act within 30 
days to ensure that abatement occurs 
or to ensure that there will not be a re-
occurrence of the failure to abate. 

[45 FR 58783, Sept. 4, 1980, as amended at 62 
FR 63276, Nov. 28, 1997; 66 FR 58647, Nov. 21, 
2001; 70 FR 70700, Nov. 22, 2005] 

§ 723.16 Waiver of use of formula to de-
termine civil penalty. 

(a) The Director, upon his own initia-
tive or upon written request received 
within 15 days of issuance of a notice of 
violation or a cessation order, may 
waive the use of formula contained in 
30 CFR 723.13 to set the civil penalty, if 
he or she determines that, taking into 
account exceptional factors present in 
the particular case, the penalty is de-
monstrably unjust. However, the Direc-
tor shall not waive the use of the for-
mula or reduce the proposed assess-
ment on the basis of an argument that 
a reduction in the proposed penalty 
could be used to abate violations of the 
Act, this chapter, any applicable pro-
gram, or any condition of any permit 
or exploration approval. The basis for 
every waiver shall be fully explained 
and documented in the records of the 
case. 

(b) If the Director waives the use of 
the formula, he or she shall use the cri-
teria set forth in 30 CFR 723.13(b) to de-
termine the appropriate penalty. When 
the Director has elected to waive the 
use of the formula, he or she shall give 
a written explanation of the basis for 
the assessment made to the person to 
whom the notice or order was issued. 

§ 723.17 Procedures for assessment of 
civil penalties. 

(a) Within 15 days of service of a no-
tice or order, the person to whom it 
was issued may submit written infor-
mation about the violation to the Of-
fice and to the inspector who issued the 
notice of violation or cessation order. 
The Office shall consider any informa-
tion so submitted in determining the 
facts surrounding the violation and the 
amount of the penalty. 
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